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Introduction
There are still beautiful towns with a fascinating history in Russia. We want to tell about one of such towns. Zaraysk is a town in Moscow Oblast, Russia. It is situated on the right bank of the river Osyotr  in 162 km from Moscow.  about 100 km south from Moscow. Population: 25,2  (2001 1Census)

Zaraysk is a regional center and on our way to our native village Makeevo we pass through this ancient town. The fascinating history, fine monuments of architecture attracts tourists into our “green small town “. Not always we know the history of native part of the world; therefore, having armed with the camera, having collected in the library a lot of books and encyclopedias, we have decided to correct our knowledge.
The purpose of research consisted in studying history of native part of the world and its basic sights.
    Object of research: books, encyclopedias, visiting of the museum of local lore.
    Subject of research: monuments of architecture of the town.
Research problems:
1) 
 To find out, why the town has got the name -Zaraysk,

2) 
 To define the basic historical events; 

3) 
 To show a standard of living of people in the middle of 19 century;

4) 
 To consider the most known sights of the town.

Methodological basis of research. The achievement of the research purpose and the decision of tasks stipulate the necessity of use of a complex of general scientific theoretical (the theoretical analysis, a concrete definition, modeling) and empirical (studying of the special literature, dictionaries) methods of research. 
    Structure of work: research work consists of introduction, two chapters, conclusion, bibliography and multimedia presentation.
In introduction the urgency of the research theme, its theoretical and practical importance is proved, the object, a subject, the purpose and research tasks are defined. 
The first chapter of scientific work « Legends and monuments of Zaraysk » is devoted to the history of the town. 

In the second chapter «The Sights of Zaraysk» are investigated the basic 
In conclusion the totals of research are summed up and brief conclusions are formulated.

1. History of Zaraysk
1.1The Legends of the Town

«The district city of the Ryazan province is on the right bank of the river Osyotr. The foundation of the town concerns to the XIII century. From Korsuny the icon OF St. Nicholas was transferred in the Ryazan grounds; on that place where she was met by prince, Jury the church was built, and the settlement named “Red “was formed.

There were 15 names of the town: Osyotr (1146, 1541), Red (1225), St Nicholas Korsunskogo (1225), Zarazsk (1225), Novogorodok-upon-the-Osetr (1387), Zarazesk (XV century), Zaraesk  (1501), Nikola Zarazskoy -upon-the-Osetr (1531), Nikola -upon-the-Osetr (1532), the town of Nikola Zarazskogo – Posad (1595), Nikola Zarazsky  (1610), Zoraysk  (1660), Zarask (1681), Zaraysk (XVII century.

Many legends are connected with the name of town; however the brightest of them is the legend about Eupraksiya.   

In December, 1237, when Batiy with his forces was on approaches to Ryazan, the great Ryazan prince Jury directed his son Fyodor, reigning in Red, as the ambassador to the conqueror. He directed him in hope, that the son would soften the anger of malicious khan and would arrange him to negotiations. Batiy accepted gifts and promised " not to go war on the Ryazan ground ". The traitor - boyar, who appeared near, whispered to khan: Fyodor’s wife - Eupraksiya was the woman of unprecedented beauty.

Then Batiy told Fyodor: «Give me prince to experience the beauty of your wife ". The Well-known «the Story about the destruction of Ryazan by Batiy", created in Zaraysk by the priest of St. Nicholas church – Euvstafiyem, helps us to look after the prince’s behavior in the Khan’s tent.
Indignant Fyodor told Batiy: «It is not necessary to us, Christians, bring to you, impious tsar, our wives on fornication. When you will overcome us, then our wives will have ".
Batiy ordered to kill the rebellious prince and to throw his body at the mercy of birds and animals. But a true servant Aponitsa secretly buried the body of the leader, and hastened with a sad message into Zarask, to Eupraksiya. 
Not wishing to fall prey to the enemy, she took her juvenile son Ivan on hands and together with him rushed from walls of a high tower towards the death. Self-destruction of proud daughter of Zaraysk was a passionate appeal to the resistance, to the sacred struggle against aggressors.
After five-day siege Batiy’s forces plundered Ryazan, burnt Zaraysk and were set to Moscow and Vladimir.
The place of Eupraksiya’s destruction was named "zarazom" (slaughter), whence, according to the legend, came the name Zarazesk or, later, Zaraysk.  
1.2 Time of Troubles 

Smuta, the Time of Troubles, also did not leave Zaraysk aside. In spring 1608 during Polish -Lithuanian intervention Zaraysk as the town at the Ryazan road (« the grain way ») became for groups of Lzhedmitriy II, going to lock Moscow from different directions, the object of exclusive value. The town was occupied by the Polish-Lithuanian army headed by Lisowski. Soon by the town walls, Lisowski defeated the Russian voevodes Khovansky and Zahariy Lyapunov and moved on to Kolomna, eventually, he took Kolomna and continued to Moscow (which apparently was his main aim), but was defeated. 

 Being boundary city, Zaraysk was in need of a clever, resolute and fair voevode, capable to mobilize local soldiers not only for fearless reflection of attacks of aggressors, but also to exile the enemy from our ground. Therefore February, 8, 1610 Vasily Shuysky appointed here voevode prince Dmitry Pozharsky.
The commander clearly understood all complexity of the new assignment. Zaraysk is a direct road to Moscow from the south. Soon, as it was expected, the army of Lzhedmitriy II approached to the walls the Kremlin. But the voevode removed blockade skillfully and forced the opponent to deviation.
Many towns on Moscow region (including Kashira and Kolomna) have recognized authority of the impostor, but Zaraysk did not. Pozharsky* was relentless, shamed doubting. “Stand up for the truth and only for the truth! - called Dmitry Mihaylovich. – Beware of treason and foreign servitude!” 
Because of Kozyma Minin and Dmitry Pozharsky’s efforts thousand and thousand compatriots rose under the banners of the Second national home guard - sagittariuses, posad's people, peasants, cossacks. People like a powerful unstoppable wave for clearing Moscow and Russia from interventionists. 

 
The Time of Troubles of the beginning of the 17 century did not pass for Russia completely. In 1625 one of historical sources speaks, that in Zaraysk still there were empty court yards which inhabitants were killed or were gone unknown. But gradually life was restored; the town equipped with modern conveniences and grew not because of the help of Moscow governors, but because of trade. 

*In 2003 the monument of the outstanding commander and the public figure, the liberator of Fatherland, voevode of Zaraysk is for D.M. Pozharsky was established.

1.3 Small Merchant Town 

In the beginning of the 18 century Zaraysk as a result of Peter's I administrative-territorial reforms appeared in structure of the Moscow province (1708). During administrative reforms, arranged by Ekaterina II, in 1775 the Ryazan province was created where Zaraysk became an uezd town. But, recognizing that it considerably surpassed provincial town in riches and quantity of inhabitants, began to be called as paramount town. In 1778 Zaraysk became an uezd town with inhabitants 5918. At establishment region ruled by governor (1778) Zaraysk received the coat of arms: a board divided into two parts, in the top part on a gold field - the arms of Ryazan region, crossed a naked sword and sheath, in the bottom part of a board on a blue background - the angular tower of the Kremlin covered by the sun. On the size of merchant capital Zaraysk occupied the 44th place in Russia.

Despite this fact, its convenient position at the crossroads between Moscow, Ryazan', and Tula, makes Zaraysk an important economic center. 

From the Encyclopedia « Brokgaus and Efron » it is visible, that according to 1837 in Zaraysk district prevailed manufactures: flour-grinding, lime – burning and alabaster, wadded, a soap factory, a shoe factory, a weaving mill or as it  was named factory of an anonymous society and others. In 1890 the town’s incomes was 48116 roubles. For self-management was spent 5522 roubles, on educational institutions 9572 roubles, on charitable establishments 4722 roubles.

There was a Real school or present secondary school № 1, female grammar school, spiritual school, district school, parish school, Bahrushinsky female school, a private school ».

« The Zaraysky district was devided in 2 stans, 20 volosts, 4 deaneries and 75 rural parishes. There were 83 orthodox churches in the district ». 

2 The Sights of Zaraysk     

  2.1 The Kremlin 
The brightest and, probably, the main sight of the town is the Kremlin. The Kremlin was constructed under the decree of grand duke Vasily III in 1528-31, doesn’t belong to not numerous Russian "regular" fortresses of the end of 15 - the beginnings of 16 centuries. The construction was of the state importance: the purpose of a fortress was protection of southern borders of Russia from invasions of the Crimean Tatars. It is extended on 185m from the east to the west and on 125m from the south to the north; the total area is 2, 3 hectares. Zaraysky Kremlin is a unique monument, a pearl of Russian architecture. It is the smallest of all domestic Kremlins of the 16 century; it is on the second place after the Moscow Kremlin on safety socle and walls. The Kremlin has got seven towers: four corner towers and three drive-through towers. Their ancient names were kept: smart Northern -Nicholskaya, Western -Egoryevskaya, Southern -Spasskaya; Northeast  corner in which weapons were kept , gunpowder and an ammunition, referred to State, Southeast - « Square, that at the  tavern », Southwest - « Square, that at a hiding place ». The thickness of the walls is 3m. Towers have three circles of fight. 
The Northern drive-through tower was named Nicholskaya by the name of the chapel, which is existed at the left to an external gate. A southern drive-through tower – Spasskaya, like a church of Christ Not made by man, taking place on Spasskaya side and destroyed in 1930th years. The Western drive-through tower – Egoryevskaya, was named on Sacred George Pobedonostsa's church that was on an opposite bank of the river Osyotr, and later - the Epiphany church (both churches were not kept). The Northeast corner tower was called State tower, - there was a stock of gunpowder and lead in its cellar. The Southeast corner tower was called “Square, that at the tavern” (a nearby building where there was a tavern, was disassembled in 1990th years), the southwest corner tower was called –“Square, that at a hiding place». In this case "hiding place" means an underground course on which to the Kremlin water was delivered 

In 1789 when the Kremlin lost its defensive value, in its blind east wall were made Trinity Gate - «occasionally because of breaking the road through the Kremlin ".
In opinion of the archeologists who made excavations in the Kremlin and around of it, the fortress was surrounded by a dry moat. 
2.2 Cathedrals and churches of the Town

The cathedral the complex in the Kremlin territory is formed by two temples - cold St. Nicholas Cathedral and warm Sobor Ioanna Predtechi. There was a bell - tower between them which belonged to the second thirds of the 18 century, it was disassembled in 1930. A historical nucleus of a complex is St. Nicholas Cathedral that was built from a brick under the decree of 1681 of Tsar Fyodor Alekseevich instead of a stone temple of 1528 also having a name of Prelate Nicholas, the patron of the town since 13 centuries. At the end of 16 century prince F.I.Mstislavsky  made a wonderful gift - the gold Portuguese "grivna", that was granted to him  by Tsar Fyodor Ivanovich for a victory above Crimean khan Kazy-Girei in 1591. On an explanation given in the edition "Russia" (the Full geographical description of our fatherland. SPb., 1902), this "grivna" is the  medal,  that was made in honour of a feat of Portuguese seafarer  Vasco  da Gama, in 1497-1498 who laid a new way to India. Later one of the Portuguese kings sent this relic as a gift to the Moscow Tsar.

Sobor Ioanna Predtechi was built in 1901-04 under K.M.Bykovsky's project on A.A. Bahrushin's means. 

Blagoveshchenskaya church was built on the Saltychyovs’ means (1777-1795). In 1825 separately facing bell - tower was built. In 1863 it was reconstructed with increase of the sizes of the refectory. There is a fresco representing the Annunciation above the entrance of the church. Next to the church is the common grave of Arzamas volunteers, who were killed in 1608 in the fight for liberation of Zaraysk from the Polish army of Lisowski. 

There is Museum of Art and History in   St. Trinity Church, 1776-1788.

The building of St. Ilia Church that was built in the 19th century remains nowadays.
2.3 The Water Tower

  The water tower represents a design of an octahedral construction in four circles, and was built from brick in 1914 by an architect A.I.Filippov (1885-1969). Inside the tower is divided into floors which are informed among themselves by wall ladders.

The water lifted from underground sources, moved only in near laying houses and in water-distributing boxes which were in the different ends of the town. From there water was carried in barrels on horses to other streets at the price of 2 pence for a bucket. Water now and then, lifted from underground sources, is non-polluting and concerns to the first class.    

The Conclusion

It is possible to attribute Zaraysk to the towns that are included in the list of cities of the Gold ring of Russia, because of our Kremlin - the main sight of the town. The legend about the princess Evpraksiay’s self-sacrifice, the wonderful climate, nature and ancient burial places attract attention not only tourists, but also archeologists. On the river Osyotr for example remains of mammoths were found. 

There are two museums in the town, Museum of Art and History Golubkina’s museum.

Our city presented the country well known people, here are their names: 

Bahrushin, Alexei Aleksandrovich - a merchant, the collector and the patron of arts, the founder of the Theatrical museum; born in Zaraysk.
Vinogradov, Victor Vladimirovich – the Soviet literary critic and the linguist - specialist in Russian philology, academician АН the USSR; was born in Zaraysk.
Golubkina, Anna Semyonovna - the sculptor; was born and died in Zaraysk.
 

Konstantinov, Fyodor Denisovich - the diagram, the national 
 artist of the USSR, corresponding member of the Academy of arts; was born in the village Makeevo in district of Zaraysk.
Leonov, Victor Nikolayevich - twice the Hero of the Soviet Union, the scout; was born in Zaraysk.
Machtet, Gregory Aleksandrovich - the writer, in 1892-1895 years lived in Zaraysk.
Meretskov Cyril Afanasyevich - the marshal of Soviet Union; was born in the village Nazaryevo in the district of Zaraysk.
Pozharsky, Dmitry Mihajlovich – the prince, the Russian 
 commander; in 1610-1611 years was voevode in Zaraysk.
Sperantova, Valentine Aleksandrovna - an actress, the national 
 actress of the USSR; was born in Zaraysk.
We like and we are proud of our town and we want to invite those who so desire to visit it.
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